The 6th Asian Beach Games Sanya 2026 Medical Guide

Contents

1.	Introduction	⊥
2.	Sanya 2026 Healthcare Organisation	2
2.1	OCA Medical Committee	2
2.2	Sanya 2026 Medical Services Support Team	3
2.3	Designated Hospitals for Sanya 2026	5
3	SABGOC Medical Services & Emergency Department	7
3.1	Medical Service Task Force	7
3.2	Public Health Task Force	7
4	NOC Medical Personnel	8
4.1	Registration of NOC Medical Personnel	8
4.2	Medical Practice Privileges of NOC Medical Personnel	8
4.3	Diagnosis and Treatment Process at the Clinic	9
4.4	Return-to-play Clinical Decision	10
4.5	Malpractice and Liability	10
4.6	NOC Medical Personnel Briefing	11
5	Import/Export of Medicines and Medical Devices	11
5.1	Medicines for Personal Use	11
5.2	Medicines for Team Use	12
5.3	Medical Devices	13
5.4	Re-Export	14
6	Medical Services in the Athletes Village	14
6.1	NOC Clinics	14
6.2	Medical Services at the Clinic	15
7	Medical Services at Competition Venues	16
7.1	Medical Services for Athletes, Team Officials, and Technical Officials	17
7.2	Medical Services for OCA Family Members	17
7.3	Medical Services for Spectators, Media Professionals, Sponsors, Staff, and Volunteers	17
8	Medical Services at Non-Competition Venues	18
8.1	Medical Services at the Opening and Closing Ceremony Venue	18
8.2	Medical Services at the OCA Headquarters Hotel	18
8.3	Medical Services at the Technical Officials Hotel, Main Media Centre, Media Hotel, Spon	sors Hotel,
etc.	18	
9	Medical Referral Services	19
10	Medical Services Outside Games Venues	19
11	Medical Informed Consent	19
12	Medical Expenses Settlement	21
13	Repatriation Insurance	21
14	Medical Disputes Settlement	22
15	Gender Verification Services	22
16	Public Health	22

16.1	Public Health Services	22
16.2	Infectious Diseases Prevention and Control	23
17	OCA Safeguarding Plan	23
17.1	Anti-sexual Harassment	23
18	Appendices	24

1. Introduction

The 6th Asian Beach Games Sanya 2026 (hereinafter referred to as "Sanya 2026" or "the Games") will be held in Sanya, China from 22 to 30 April 2026. The 6th Asian Beach Games Sanya 2026 Organising Committee (hereinafter referred to as "SABGOC") is responsible for organising and providing Games-time medical services in accordance with the OCA Constitution and the OCA Guideline for Medical Services and Anti-Doping Programme for Asian Games.

Key Dates of Sanya 2026 Medical Services

No.	Date	Activities
	15 D 1 2025	Distribution to NOCs of the NOC Medical
I	15 December 2025	Personnel Registration Form and the NOC Medical Agreement Form
2	15 January 2026	Deadline for NOCs to submit the NOC Medical Personnel Registration Form and the NOC Medical Agreement Form
3	15 February 2026	Distribution to NOCs of the confirmation letters for the NOC Medical Personnel Registration Form and the NOC Medical Agreement Form

4	15 April 2026	Pre-Opening of the Athletes Village
5	18 April 2026	Official Opening of the Athletes Village
6	22 April 2026	Opening Ceremony of Sanya 2026
7	30 April 2026	Closing Ceremony of Sanya 2026
8	3 May 2026	Closing of the Athletes Village

2. Sanya 2026 Healthcare Organisation

2.10CA Medical Committee

Chair	Dr Sultan Ya'rub Qahtan AL BUSAIDI
	Dr Lee Sanghoon
	Dr Ahmed Saleh A Bin Nasser
	Dr Cheng Huan CHANG
	Dr Alongkone Phengsavanh
	Dr Michiko Tashima
Members	Dr Li Yanhu
	Dr Kelvin Chew Tai Loon
	Enkhbat BADAR-UUGAN
	Dr Gholamreza Norouzi
	Dr Vignesh Ujjwal

Dr Mohammed Shafiqur Rahman
Dr Mohd. Al-Musleh

2.2 Sanya 2026 Medical Services Support Team

2.2.1 Chief Medical Officer

As per the *Host City Contract*, ZHOU Gang has been appointed as the Chief Medical Officer (CMO) of SABGOC, responsible for liaising with the OCA Medical Committee and coordinating medical services for Sanya 2026.

2.2.2 Venue Managers on Medical Services

SABGOC will assign Venue Managers on Medical Services to all competition and non-competition venues in accordance with the venuisation requirements. They are responsible for coordinating and carrying out on-site medical services for Sanya 2026.

Venue Type	Venue Name	Venue Manager on Medical Services
	Beach Volleyball Venue	LIN Lei
	Sport Climbing Venue	HUANG Zhi
Competition	Beach Handball Venue	QIU Long
Venues	Beach Soccer Venue	ZHANG Zhihong
	Beach Wrestling, Jiu Jitsu	ZHANG Dongjun

	Venue	
	Teqball Venue	ZHANG Yaqian
	Sailing Venue	DU Jing
	Aquathlon Venue	LI Mingcong
	Aquatics (Open Water Swimming, Water Polo) Venue	FU Wanbo
	Beach Kabaddi Venue	HUANG Hui
	Beach Athletics Venue	WU Shudan
	Dragon Boat Venue	HUANG Qi
	3x3 Basketball Venue	LIN Zhuyun
Opening & Closing Ceremonies	The Ring Square	SHI Kai, LI Weidong
Athletes Village	Clinic	ZHENG Yonggen
OCA Family Hotel	Sanya Conifer Resort	YE Qiaolong
Technical	Sanya Shengyi Holiday Villa Hotel	LAN Hongxia
Officials Hotel	Howard Johnson Resort Sanya Bay	HUANG Hongxia

Doping Control Staff Hotel	Crowne Plaza Sanya City Centre	WANG Zhilin
	Sanya Jinghai Hotel & Resort	CHEN Xingju
	Sanya Junda Seaview Hotel	BAI Yun
Media Hotels (Self-funded)	Sanya Golden Phoenix Sea View Hotel	FENG Jinkang
	Timton Fuhe Hotel Sanya	WANG Shenfang
	Sanya Xizang Hotel	HU Nan
Sponsor Hotel	Grand Soluxe Hotel & Resort Sanya	LIN Yuhuang
	Wyndham Sanya Bay	HE Jinxi
Guest Hotels (Self-funded)	Hyatt Regency Sanya Tianli Bay	HU Chunxiang

2.3 Designated Hospitals for Sanya 2026

SABGOC has assigned three medical institutions as designated hospitals for Sanya 2026, offering venue-specific medical services and patient referral services for the Games. These designated hospitals will be equipped with green channels and reserved beds for Games participants. If medical services are needed outside the Games venues, it is recommended to seek medical

treatment at any one of these designated hospitals for Sanya 2026.

Games Designated Hospitals

Chinese Name of Designated Hospital	English Name of Designated Hospital	Address	Hotline
三亚中心医院 (Comprehensive Grade III Level A Hospital)	Sanya Central Hospital (Hainan Third People's Hospital)	No. 1154 Jiefang Road, Sanya, Hainan	0898-38226026
三亚市人民医院四 川大学华西三亚医 院 (Comprehensive Grade III Level A Hospital)	Sanya People's Hospital West China (Sanya) Hospital, Sichuan University	No. 558 Jiefang Road, Sanya, Hainan	0898-88021011
三亚市中医院 (Grade III Level A TCM Hospital)	Sanya Hospital of Traditional Chinese Medicine	No. 106 Fenghuang Road, Jiyang District, Sanya, Hainan	0898-88275345

These Games designated hospitals will establish green channels and dedicated medical service areas, and provide medical services in accordance with the

relevant requirements as stipulated in the Medical Guide and the Pharmacy Guide.

Any accredited Games participants who need to see a doctor at any of these Games designated hospitals by themselves must be accompanied by a third individual, and present their Sanya Asian Beach Games Identity and Accreditation Cards (SABGIACs), otherwise they will not be able to access medical services provided by the designated hospitals.

3 SABGOC Medical Services & Emergency Department

3.1 Medical Service Task Force

The Medical Service Task Force is responsible for coordinating medical services and emergency care for Sanya 2026. It also manages liaison and coordination with the OCA Medical Committee and NOC Medical Personnel.

3.2 Public Health Task Force

The Public Health Task Force is responsible for organising and coordinating epidemic prevention and control, health supervision, and vector control for the Sanya 2026.

4 NOC Medical Personnel

4.1 Registration of NOC Medical Personnel

Each NOC medical personnel must complete the *NOC Medical Personnel Registration Form* (**Appendix 1**), which includes the name, nationality, speciality, and passport number of each NOC medical personnel, and attach a scanned copy of the original personal medical qualification certificate and a scanned copy of the medical qualification certificate translated into Chinese or English. Each NOC should collect these documents and e-mail them to SABGOC (medical@sanya2026.cn) by 15 January 2026.

An NOC whose medical personnel will also provide medical services to members of another NOC delegation during the Games must additionally provide an *NOC Medical Agreement Form* (**Appendix 2**) jointly signed by both NOCs. This agreement must be e-mailed to SABGOC (medical@sanya2026.cn) by 15 January 2026.

4.2 Medical Practice Privileges of NOC Medical Personnel

Authorised NOC medical personnel are only allowed to provide medical services to members of their own delegation.

Authorised NOC medical personnel can prescribe medicines for members of their own delegation. These prescriptions can be picked up in compliance with the regulations of the Clinic.

Authorised NOC medical personnel can make appointments for specific medical services (such as ultrasound equipment and laboratory tests) for members of their own delegation at the Clinic.

An NOC team doctor must present an *NOC Medical Agreement Form* signed by all the concerned NOCs before providing medical treatment or other medical services to members of another delegation.

When it is necessary to transfer patients to a designated hospital for treatment, their NOC medical personnel may accompany the patients and discuss clinical care issues. The specific treatment will be provided by the medical services team of the designated hospital, as NOC medical personnel are not permitted to practice medicine in China's hospitals. NOC medical personnel will be responsible for medical care after patients' discharge.

4.3 Diagnosis and Treatment Process at the Clinic

After an NOC medical personnel issues a prescription, they are accessible to the prescription pick-up service in accordance with relevant regulations. Electrocardiogram tests, ultrasound tests, rehabilitation treatments and other services will also be available, upon presentation of an examination and treatment form issued by the NOC medical personnel and signed by a Clinic doctor.

4.4 Return-to-play Clinical Decision

The clinical decision on whether to allow an athlete back to the FOP after trauma or injury should be made in accordance with relevant Games regulations. Generally speaking, this decision is up to the concerned athlete and NOC medical personnel. If necessary, the International Federation (IF)/Asian Federation (AF) medical officers or the venue medical services team can provide recommendations regarding withdrawal from competition.

4.5 Malpractice and Liability

SABGOC assumes no liability for medical services provided by NOC medical personnel.

SABGOC does not provide medical malpractice insurance and liability insurance for NOC medical personnel.

When a member of their own delegation or a member of a delegation covered by a medical services agreement requires medical attention, the team doctor should immediately arrive on site and provide treatment recommendations. SABGOC's on-site medical staff will assist in implementing the treatment. If there is a discrepancy between the treatment opinions of the on-site medical staff and the team doctor, the team doctor's opinion shall prevail, and the team doctor shall assume the corresponding responsibility.

It is recommended that NOC medical personnel arrange their own medical

malpractice and liability insurance, ensuring that such insurance covers activities related to the Games and is valid within China.

4.6 NOC Medical Personnel Briefing

NOCs will receive invitations in advance for an NOC medical personnel briefing, which is scheduled to be held in mid-April 2026.

5 Import/Export of Medicines and Medical Devices

NOC delegations or individuals bringing into China medicines and medical products for use during the Games must comply with the laws and regulations of the People's Republic of China on medicines and medical devices management and the *List of the People's Republic of China of Articles Prohibited from Importation and Exportation* (Decree No. 43 of the GACC). For more information, please refer to the Freight and Customs Manual for the 6th Asian Beach Games Sanya 2026.

Entry conditions for medicines and medical devices and exit of the remaining:

5.1 Medicines for Personal Use

According to Article 44 of the *State Council's Regulations on the Control of Narcotic and Psychotropic Drugs (2016 Amendment)*, where, due to the need of curing diseases, an individual may carry narcotic drugs and the

psychotropic drugs of Category I within the maximum dosage of a single prescription upon the strength of the medical certificate and his/her identity certificate. If anyone carries any narcotic drug or the psychotropic drug of Category I to enter or exit the territory, the customs house shall grant discharge in light of the principle of personal use and reasonable quantity.

According to Article 39 of the *Measures for the Administration of Imported Medicinal Materials (2012 Amendment)*, small quantities of drugs carried by the persons at the entry and exit shall be limited to personal use and reasonable quantity, and shall be subject to customs supervision.

"Small quantities" or "reasonable quantities" generally means: for injectable preparations of narcotic drugs and psychotropic drugs of Category I, the amount should not exceed the dosage for one prescription; for other preparations, it should not exceed the dosage for 3 days per prescription; for controlled-release or sustained-release preparations, it should not exceed the dosage for 7 days; for psychotropic drugs of Category II, the quantity generally should not exceed the dosage for 7 days per prescription. Where a longer prescription dosage is required under special circumstances, the prescribing physician must note the reason.

5.2 Medicines for Team Use

All accredited NOC medical personnel carrying medicines intended for use by

members of their own delegation must complete the *NOC Declaration for the Import of Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Drugs* (Appendix 7) and the *NOC Declaration for the Import of Non-Narcotic Drugs and Non-Psychotropic Drugs* (Appendix 3) signed by the NOC Chief Medical Officer, and submit them to SABGOC (medical@sanya2026.cn) for review by 15 January 2026. SABGOC will send the review results to each NOC via e-mail.

The application for non-narcotic and non-psychotropic drugs must not contain any medications prohibited for entry.

The quantity of medicines carried should be kept within reasonable limits to ensure they are sufficient for providing medical services to members of the respective NOC delegation during their stay in China for the Games.

5.3 Medical Devices

Medical devices carried as carry-on luggage by NOC delegations shall be limited to personal use and a reasonable quantity and are subject to customs supervision.

NOC delegations are required to report in advance to SABGOC and local Customs authorities the information on the imported medical devices if the devices are to be imported under the "temporary entry/exit" trade mode.

5.4Re-Export

Medicines brought by Games participants for use during the Games must be for personal use only. Medicines imported via shipment for the NOC delegation's use can only be used by the NOC delegation members. All of the above-mentioned medicines are only for temporary use during Sanya 2026, and unused medicines must be re-exported out of China after the Games. These medicines must not be discarded, given away, transferred or sold. Medical devices entering China under the "temporary entry/exit" trade mode must be re-exported out of China according to relevant regulations after the Games.

6 Medical Services in the Athletes Village

6.1 NOC Clinics

A clinic will be provided for each NOC delegation. The area and quantity of these clinics will be determined based on the delegation size and accommodation location. The items available free of charge at the clinic are shown in the table below. NOC medical personnel may provide diagnosis and treatment in their clinics.

Free-to-use Items in an NOC Clinic

No.	Free-to-use Item	Quantity
1	Office Desk	1
2	Office Chair	1
3	Examination Bed	1
4	Examination Lamp	1
5	Ice Bucket	1
6	Storage Cabinet	1
7	Medical Waste Bin	1
8	General Waste Bin	1

6.2 Medical Services at the Clinic

A Clinic will be set up in the Athletes Village to provide routine medical services, 24/7 emergency care, and ambulance referral services for accredited personnel in the Village. It includes clinical departments such as Emergency Medicine, Emergency Surgery, Stomatology, Ophthalmology, Dermatology, Psychological Counselling, and TCM Speciality Diagnosis and Treatment. It also features supporting departments such as Pharmacy, Ultrasound, ECG, and

Laboratory. The Pharmacy at the Clinic provides medication dispensing services.

Accredited medical personnel of each NOC delegation may issue prescriptions (Appendix 4) and pick up medicines at the Pharmacy. For a specific list of medicines, please refer to the *Pharmacy Guide for the 6th Asian Beach Games Sanya 2026*.

Operating Hours of Daily Medical Services

Date	Operating Hours
15April 2026 – 17April 2026	09:00-20:00
18April 2026 – 2May 2026	08:00-22:00
3May 2026	09:00-12:00

7 Medical Services at Competition Venues

Each competition venue is equipped with an Athlete Clinic, an FOP Medical Point, a Spectator Medical Station, and an Ambulance Team. All persons at the venue will have access to basic medical services, first aid, and patient referral services. These services will be available from one (1) hour before the competition starts until all athletes and spectators have left the competition venue. Medical services at competition venues are managed by the Venue

Manager on Medical Services.

7.1 Medical Services for Athletes, Team Officials, and Technical Officials

Basic medical care, first aid, and referral services in the venue are provided at the FOP Medical Point and the Athlete Clinic. Medical services at each competition venue are managed by the Venue Manager on Medical Services.

7.2 Medical Services for OCA Family Members

OCA Family members can access medical services in competition venues. If an emergency occurs or further medical treatment is required, they will be referred to the appropriate designated hospital based on the nature of the illness or injury.

7.3 Medical Services for Spectators, Media Professionals, Sponsors, Staff, and Volunteers

Spectators, media professionals, sponsors, staff, and volunteers can seek medical assistance at the Spectator Medical Station in the venue. Accredited media professionals, sponsors, and staff with venue access entitlements may also seek treatment at the venue clinic. Basic medical care, first aid, and referral services are provided.

8 Medical Services at Non-Competition Venues

8.1 Medical Services at the Opening and Closing Ceremony Venue

An Athlete Clinic, a Spectator Medical Station, and an Ambulance Team will be set up at the Opening/Closing Ceremony venue, providing medical services for the relevant customer groups such as athletes, VIPs, spectators and media professionals.

8.2 Medical Services at the OCA Headquarters Hotel

A clinic will be set up at the OCA Headquarters Hotel (with the specific location subject to change), providing routine medical services (08:00–20:00) and 24/7 emergency medical services for hotel guests.

8.3 Medical Services at the Technical Officials Hotel, Main Media Centre, Media Hotel, Sponsors Hotel, etc.

A clinic will be set up at each hotel (with the specific location subject to change), providing routine medical services (08:00–20:00) and 24/7 emergency medical services for accredited personnel and hotel guests.

9 Medical Referral Services

During the Games, ambulance and patient referral services will be provided in both competition and non-competition venues to support the rescue operations by a maritime search and rescue team.

Operating hours for competition venues, training venues, medals plaza, and the Opening/Closing Ceremony venue are the same. Other venues operate 24 hours a day.

10 Medical Services Outside Games Venues

In case of an emergency outside a Games venue, accredited Games participants can call the emergency number "120". In principle, patients will be transferred to the nearest Games designated hospital that has the most relevant clinical expertise to deal with the medical crisis. When an SABGIAC is presented, patients will be able to access the emergency green channel for expedited treatment. The NOC to which the patient belongs must notify SABGOC of the situation as soon as possible.

11 Medical Informed Consent

During the Games, all athletes requiring treatment, with or without medications, must sign the *Medical Informed Consent for the 6th Asian Beach*

Games Sanya 2026 (Appendix 5) before receiving medication or relevant non-pharmacological treatments. Athletes have the right to refuse treatment or medication use.

In accordance with anti-doping requirements, athletes who need medications must strictly follow the approved medication list. To ensure the safety of athletes, any athlete is prohibited to use medications intended for other personnel (except in emergency rescue). The principles for handling Therapeutic Use Exemptions (TUEs) must be strictly followed. If a prohibited substance or method needs to be administered to an athlete who is in the middle of a competition, the physician, athlete, or NOC medical personnel must complete the *Informed Consent for Using Medications Containing Prohibited Substances* (Appendix 6).

Athletes who have successfully applied for a TUE must bring their own medications for treatment. Requesting such medications at the medical points of Games venues and the Clinics is not permitted. If replenishment of such medications is needed, the athlete must undergo relevant checkups, after which a Clinic doctor and NOC medical personnel will determine the appropriate treatment and/or medication. The athlete must then fill out the *Informed Consent for Using Medications Containing Prohibited Substances*.

12 Medical Expenses Settlement

During the Games, all Games participants within Games venues will have access to emergency services and accident medical services free of charge, as well as patient referral services from venues to designated hospitals. Other medical service expenses must be settled according to the relevant insurance provisions. Any expenses incurred outside these covered services, such as elective medical treatment (e.g., choosing premium medications, additional examinations, or elective surgery against the advice of the attending physician), shall be borne by the patient or the concerned organisation. SABGOC discourages such elective medical treatment and will not cover these costs.

13 Repatriation Insurance

SABGOC will provide repatriation insurance for all accredited OCA Family members, NOC athletes, and team officials. This insurance will provide for medical evacuation or repatriation within the policy limits. In the event of the patient's demise, the repatriation insurance will cover the expenses associated with transporting the deceased's body back home.

14 Medical Disputes Settlement

If a medical accident involves a doctor appointed or hired by SABGOC, it will be handled according to the relevant legal procedures of the People's Republic of China.

SABGOC is not responsible for medical disputes arising from the actions of NOC medical personnel.

15 Gender Verification Services

If required by the OCA Medical Committee, SABGOC will perform the necessary examinations.

SABGOC will collaborate with the OCA Medical Committee and Anti-Doping Commission to set up a Gender Verification Panel. The verification will be conducted in strict accordance with the OCA regulations and handled with absolute confidentiality.

16 Public Health

16.1 Public Health Services

Public health and safety measures implemented by SABGOC cover infectious disease prevention and control, safety of drinking water, food safety, public

place hygiene, smoking control, and vector control.

16.2 Infectious Diseases Prevention and Control

The policies, regulations, and measures for infectious diseases prevention and control during the Games will comply with the relevant laws and regulations of China on infectious diseases control, as well as the relevant requirements of the OCA for epidemic prevention and control.

During the Games, SABGOC will collect information on public health and infectious diseases that may impact Games operations and relay this information to the OCA for risk evaluation, so as to provide decision-making basis for evaluating the safety of the Games.

17 OCA Safeguarding Plan

17.1 Anti-sexual Harassment

SABGOC has a zero-tolerance policy regarding any form of sexual harassment. Any report of sexual harassment will be investigated and addressed promptly.

Any individual found to have sexually harassed another person will face severe penalties, including dismissal or cancellation of their SABGIAC.

Sexual harassment is a criminal offence under the Chinese law, and offenders

may also be subject to prosecution by local authorities. All reports of sexual harassment will be treated seriously and confidentially.

18 Appendices

4.

- 1. NOC Medical Personnel Registration Form
- 2. NOC Medical Agreement Form
- NOC Declaration for the Import of Non-Narcotic Drugs and 3. Non-Psychotropic Drugs
- NOC Medical Personnel Prescription Form
- Medical Informed Consent for the 6th Asian Beach Games Sanya 5. 2026
- Informed Consent for Using Medications Containing Prohibited 6. Substances
- NOC Declaration for the Import of Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic 7. Drugs

Appendix 1

NOC Medical Personnel Registration Form

Name (Consistent with passport)		
Date of Birth (DD/MM/YYYY)		Dhataawah
Gender		Photograph
Passport Number		
Address		
Tel		
Fax		
E-mail		
Name of NOC (Country/Region)		
Information on	Physician Licencing Authority	
Licencing Authority		
Country/Region		
Date of Issue		
Licence Number		
Current Affiliated Institution/Hospital		
I hereby certify that the above true and correct.	information and the attached lic	ence copy are
Applicant's Signature: Date:		
Signature of NOC President or	Chef de Mission:	
Title:		
Date:		

Attachments:

- Copy of the original medical licence (1 copy)
 Chinese/English translation of the medical licence issued by a public institution (1 copy)

District, Sanya, Contact: WANG Jian,

Email: medical@sanya2026.cn)

^{*}Note: The Form must be completed in Chinese/English.

^{*}The Form must be submitted to (Address: No. 14 Chunguang Road, Jiyang

Appendix 2

NOC Medical Agreement Form

Name of NOC (Country/Region):
NOC Chef de Mission:
NOC Chief Medical Officer (CMO)
E-mail:

List of NOC Medical Personnel

Name	Gender	Passport Number	Licence Name	Licencing Authority

I hereby certify that the above-mentioned medical personnel are providing medical services to members of the NOC delegation. They hold the necessary medical licence for medical practice in accordance with the laws of ______ [Fill in Country/Region Name] and possess the professional medical skills required. All of the above-mentioned medical personnel are insured against medical accidents and will assume full responsibility for their decisions and the medical services they provide.

Guarantor's Title (NOC President or Chef de Mission):

Guarantor's Signature:

Date:

*Note: The Form must be completed in Chinese/English. If there is not enough writing space, please attach another sheet of paper.

The Form must be submitted to SABGOC's designated e-mail address: medical@sanya2026.cn

Appendix 3

NOC Declaration for the Import of Non-Narcotic Drugs and Non-Psychotropic Drugs

The delegation requires the import of the following non-narcotic and non-psychotropic drugs for participation in the 6th Asian Beach Games Sanya 2026:

Generic	Proprietary	Dosage	Strength/	Quantity Imported
Name	Name	Form	Formulation	Imported

Note: All medications listed above are for temporary use only during Sanya 2026. Any unused medications must be re-exported out of China after the Games and must not be discarded, given away, transferred, or sold. These medications will be managed by the respective NOC delegation.

NOC CMO's Signature:

Date:

Appendix 4

NOC Medical Personnel Prescription Form

*For use only at the Clinic	Date (DD/MM/YYYY)			
2 02 000 01119 00 011				
Patient Infor	mation			
Name	Date of Birth (DD/MM/YYYY)			
SABGIAC Number	NOC			
Address	Contact Number			
Sport/Discipline				
Clinical Diagnosis				
Prescription Int	formation			

Medicine Name	Strength/ Formulation	Dose Per Administration	Frequency of Administration	Duration (Days)	Total Quantity
		Direction fo	or Use		
	Presc	ribing Medical Per	sonnel Information		
Name		NOC			
			Contact Number		
Address		E-mail			
SABGIAC Number		Signature			

For prescribing prohibited substances, please read and sign the declarations below.

Consent and signature for the supply of WADA prohibited medication(s) by

the prescribing doctor and dispensing pharmacist:

I have informed the athlete that the medication(s) being prescribed is/are

prohibited according to the WADA 2026 International Standard for the

Prohibited List of the World Anti-Doping Code and that a Therapeutic Use

Exemption (TUE) must be obtained from the International Testing Agency

(ITA) TUE Committee.

Prescribing Doctor's Signature:

Dispensing Pharmacist's Signature:

Consent to receipt of WADA prohibited medication(s) by the athlete:

I confirm that the medication(s) received is/are prohibited according to the

WADA 2026 International Standard for the Prohibited List of the World

Anti-Doping Code. I am responsible for applying for and obtaining a

Therapeutic Use Exemption (TUE) from the International Testing Agency

TUE Committee prior to taking the medication(s). I understand that failure to

obtain a valid TUE in advance may result in an Anti-Doping Rule Violation

(ADRV).

-32-

Athlete's Signature:

Authorised Representative's Signature (for an athlete under 18 years of age):

Appendix 5

Medical Informed Consent for the 6th Asian Beach Games Sanya 2026

Name		Gender	Age			
Nationality		SABGIAC				
		Number				
Medical						
Condition						
	Disclosure:					
	Based on the patient's con	dition, the patient	needs to take			
	(Medication Name, Dosage Form, Dosage Strength, etc.) or be treated with. □ Athlete/NOC Medical Personnel agrees to the above recommendation					
Prescribing	☐ Athlete/NOC Medical Personnel disagrees to the above					
Doctor	recommendation					
	Doctor Statement:					
	I have informed the athlete of the medical condition and					
	explained the potential risks and possible complications during					
	the course of treatment.					
	Doctor's Signature:					
	DD/MM/YYYY					
Athlete o	rAcknowledgement:					
Authorised	The doctor has informed r	ne of the followin	g matters. I fully			

Representative understand and confirm:

- 1. I authorise the doctor for the Games to provide medical treatment services for me.
- 2. The doctor has explained to me in detail the potential complications and risks that may arise during the diagnosis and treatment process, and has answered my questions.
- 3. I fully understand the potential risks and possible complications that may occur during the medical treatment process, which have also been communicated to me by the doctor.
- 4. I fully acknowledge the potential risks and possible complications that may occur during the medical treatment process and voluntarily accept all consequences arising therefrom.

If the athlete is unable to sign this informed consent, the signature of an authorised representative is required (please provide authorisation document).

Authorised Representative's Signature:

Athlete's Signature:

DD/MM/YYYY

Appendix 6

Informed Consent for Using Medications Containing Prohibited Substances

Name		Gender	Age			
		SABGIAC	1 -			
Nationality		Number				
To the Patient/	Authorised Repres	entative:				
According to r	elevant usage regu	lations, the following m	edication(s) i	s/are included		
in the WADA	2026 Prohibited Lis	st. However, concerning	the medical	condition, the		
use of this/thes	se medication(s) ma	ay be necessary (with no	o alternative a	vailable). The		
athlete-patient	will bear any cons	equences resulting from	the use of th	is/these		
medication(s).	The athlete-patient	t also has the right to fre	ely choose w	hether or not to		
use this/these 1	nedication(s).					
	Informed Conse	ent:				
	Based on the patient's condition, the patient needs to take					
	(Medication Name, Dosage Form, Dosage Strength, etc.). I have					
	informed the atl	nlete that the medication	(s) being pres	cribed is/are		
Prescribing	prohibited accor	prohibited according to the WADA 2026 International Standard for				
D						

(Medication Name, Dosage Form, Dosage Strength, etc.). I have informed the athlete that the medication(s) being prescribed is/are prohibited according to the WADA 2026 International Standard for the Prohibited List of the World Anti-Doping Code and that a Therapeutic Use Exemption (TUE) must be obtained from the International Testing Agency TUE Committee. Signature: DD/MM/YYYY Athlete or Acknowledgement: We have been thoroughly informed by the doctor of the treatment medication. We understand the doctor's

Representative	disclosure, acknowledge this information, and	confirm by		
Representative				
	signature.			
	I agree to use the medication and accept full	I do not agree to use		
	responsibility for all potential consequences	the medication and		
	arising from its use. I confirm that the	accept responsibility		
	medication(s) received is/are prohibited	for any adverse		
	according to the WADA 2026 International	consequences arising		
	Standard for the Prohibited List of the World	from not using it.		
	Anti-Doping Code. I am responsible for			
	applying for and obtaining a Therapeutic Use			
	Exemption (TUE) from the International	Signature of Athlete		
	Testing Agency TUE Committee prior to	or Authorised		
	taking the medication(s). I understand that	Representative:		
	failure to obtain a valid TUE in advance may			
	result in an Anti-Doping Rule Violation	DD/MM/YYYY		
	(ADRV).			
	Signature of Athlete or Authorised			
	Representative:			
	DD/MM/YYYY			

For prescribing prohibited substances, please read and sign the declarations below.

Consent and signature for the supply of WADA prohibited medication(s) by the prescribing doctor and dispensing pharmacist: I have informed the athlete that the medication(s) being prescribed is/are

prohibited according to the WADA 2026 International Standard for the

Prohibited List of the World Anti-Doping Code and that a Therapeutic Use

Exemption (TUE) must be obtained from the International Testing Agency

(ITA) TUE Committee.

Prescribing Doctor's Signature:

Dispensing Pharmacist's Signature:

Consent to receipt of WADA prohibited medication(s) by the athlete:

I confirm that the medication(s) received is/are prohibited according to the

WADA 2026 International Standard for the Prohibited List of the World

Anti-Doping Code. I am responsible for applying for and obtaining a

Therapeutic Use Exemption (TUE) from the International Testing Agency

TUE Committee prior to taking the medication(s). I understand that failure to

obtain a valid TUE in advance may result in an Anti-Doping Rule Violation

(ADRV).

Athlete's Signature:

Authorised Representative's Signature (for an athlete under 18 years of age):

-38-

Appendix 7

NOC Declaration for the Import of Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Drugs

The delegation requires the import of the following narcotic and psychotropic drugs for participation in the 6th Asian Beach Games Sanya 2026:

Generic	Proprietary	Dosage	Strength/	Quantity
Name	Name	Form	Formulation	Imported

Note: All medications listed above are for temporary use only during Sanya 2026. Any unused medications must be re-exported out of China after the Games and must not be discarded, given away, transferred, or sold. These medications will be managed by the respective NOC delegation.

ıre:

Date: